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Built heritage

The specific provisions of the Proposed Plan Change that my submission relates to are as follows:

Please reference the specific section or part of the planning provision(s), for example Rule 20.3.1, Policy 19.3a.

The policies and objectives identified under 19.2.1, 19.2.2 and 19.2.3 and rules under 19.3.1 relating to
identification and protection of heritage buildings and structures.

My submission is that:

State in summary the nature of your submission. Clearly indicate whether you support or oppose the specific
provisions or wish to have amendments made, giving reasons.

We support the intent of the policies and objectives but have concern that the rules do not go far enough to
provide the intended protection, enhancement and maintenance of heritage. For example, demolition of a
Ranked B building or structure should be a Non-complying activity, not discretionary and the exceptions should
be tightened. The same applies to removal of a heritage building.

The requirement that subdivision can occur for a site with a heritage building subject to avoiding, mitigating or
remedying adverse effects needs to be made much more specific about what is required to achieve those
objectives. For example, it is difficult to envisage how a heritage house within the Hamilton East Villa Heritage
Zone would have it's heritage value protected if it was surrounded on both sides and behind by multi-story
apartment blocks? Without knowing yet what the specific objectives, policies and rules will be under the yet to
be notified Plan Change 12, it is of concern to us that heritage protection in the heritage zones may not be
sufficiently controlled if medium or high density intensification is allowed to occur in these zones.

We also question why our house (the Parsonage) in Firth Street, Hamilton East Villa Precinct, has not been
identified as having heritage value. It is a villa, circa 1905, with a hexagonal bay window turret. It was associated
with St John's Methodist Church on Wellington/ Grey St over the period 1915 to 1964 when it was leased
initially until 1919 and then bought from Mr William Hayes by the church and used as the church parsonage.
Refer to page 19 of attached documentation entitled St John's Methodist Church - Hamilton East Parish 1910-
2010. As the original church on the corner of Wellington and Grey Streets was recently demolished it would be
important to ensure ongoing protection for the parsonage in Firth Street in order to retain some level of
connection with the church's heritage in Hamilton East.

There are likely other houses in the Villa HHA that have been missed by the recent historical research that
deserve additional levels of protection. For example, there are two early 20th century cottages accessed off
Albert Street that back on to Firth St behind our villa but have not been identified for protection. These could
be easily demolished under the current proposed rules as they are not on the street front.

| seek the following decision from the Hamilton City Council:

Please give precise details.



That proposed rules, conditions and exceptions are strengthened for heritage buildings and structures with
intensification (medium and high density) development identified as non-complying for the Hamilton East Villas,
Hayes Paddock and Frankton Railway Village Historic Heritage areas.

Historic Heritage Areas

The specific provisions of the Proposed Plan Change that my submission relates to are as follows:

Please reference the specific section or part of the planning provision(s), for example Rule 20.3.1, Policy 19.3a.

The policies and objectives identified under 19.2.4 to 19.2.5 and rules under 19.3 to 19.6 relating to protection
of historic heritage areas. Also Subdivision rules under chapter 23 and density and height rules under Chapter 5.

My submission is that:

State in summary the nature of your submission. Clearly indicate whether you support or oppose the specific
provisions or wish to have amendments made, giving reasons.

We support the intent of the policies and objectives under Chapter 19 but have concern that the rules under
Chapter 19 do not go far enough to provide the intended protection, enhancement and maintenance of
heritage. It is also difficult to conclude how subdivision and density rules etc for development will align with
protection of the historic heritage areas as we are unclear how Plan Change 12 might impact these subdivision
and density and height rules that are currently specified under Chapters 5 and 23. There is currently too much
uncertainty regarding the impact on heritage without seeing Plan Change 12.

Subdivision and development of sites with non-heritage buildings within a historic heritage zone still need to be
undertaken in a manner that avoids, mitigates or remedies adverse effects, including cumulative effects, on the
heritage character and value of these areas. Otherwise we will end up with a few sparsely scattered houses
across the zone surrounded by totally un-sympathetic developments of high intensity with the original heritage
character of the area smothered, disconnected and or completely lost.

Without knowing yet what the specific objectives, policies and rules will be under the yet to be notified Plan
Change 12, it is of concern to us that heritage protection in the heritage zones may not be sufficiently
controlled if medium or high density intensification is allowed to occur in these zones.

In summary, there is not enough specificity or control to prevent the loss and cumulative erosion of heritage
within Historic Heritage Areas.

| seek the following decision from the Hamilton City Council:

Please give precise details.

That proposed rules, conditions and exceptions are strengthened for historic heritage zones with intensification
(medium and high density) development identified as non-complying and a single story limit for development of



new residential buildings in the Hamilton East Villas and Hayes Paddock Historic Heritage zones as is proposed
for the Frankton Railway Village Historic Heritage zone.

Additional information

Do you want to be heard in support of your submission?

Please select one item

(Required)

@ Yes
O No

If others make a similar submission would, you be prepared to consider presenting a joint case with them
at any hearing?

Please select one item

@ Yes
O No

Could you gain an advantage in trade competition through this submission?

Please select one item

O Yes
@ No
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St. John’s Methodist Church — Hamilton East Parish 1910-2010

Serving the Hamilton East

Community for 100 years.




St. John’s Methodist Church — Hamilton East Parish 1910-2010

Hamilton East Parish 1910-2010.
St John's Methodist Church
One Hundred Years on.
1910-2010

A century of worship and witness in Hamilton East. A short history of
the life and work of the people called Methodist in the Hamilton East
suburbs incorporating the booklets prepared and distributed for the 50th
Jubilee, (Rev. Charles B. Oldfield,) and the 75th Celebrations, (Mr.
Herbert Longbottom.)

This update was compiled and amended by Catherine Dickie, member
of the Centennial Committee with assistance from members of the
congregation.

We give thanks for the lives and witness of those who have served this
church in the past, ministers / presbyters and laypeople alike and look to
the future with hope that the work of God will continue to be done here
in Hamilton East by the people who call themselves Methodist.

It has been an interesting and enlightening experience to work on this
booklet and we trust that you who read it will feel the same degree of
gratitude to the people who have made St. John's the place of worship
and rich fellowship it is today.

Centennial Team Members:

Arthur Dickie, Catherine Dickie, Rev. Anne Griffiths, Doreen Lennox,
Sai Jackson, Gordon Major, Joyce Metcaife, Neville Metcaife, Sione
Molitika, Apakuki Ratucoka.
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St. John’s Methodist Church — Hamilton East Parish 1910-2010
A Century of Hamilton East Methodism.
Celebrating 100 years of St John's Church.

Early Days:

Among the early families who settled in Hamilton East were some ardent Methodists
who, with their children, worshipped at Trinity Wesleyan Church in Collingwood
Street in the city.

The journey across the river, via a wooden bridge, was not an easy one because of the
number of young children and the considerable walk involved. To send the children
back over the bridge for Sunday School in the afternoon and then again back for
Evening Worship Services made for a very full day. This together with some natural
fears for the safety of the children crossing the river, no doubt gave rise to the desire
to have a church of their own on the east side of the Waikato River where they could
worship and their children be taught the Scriptures.

An early Meeting:

The minister of the time, Rev. H.L. Blamires, saw the wisdom of the peoples'
suggestion that there be a church in Hamilton East. The seeds of this suggestion grew
and as early as 1903 a meeting was convened in the office of the butcher's shop owned
at the time by Mr. George Jamieson next to where the Westpac Bank now stands in
Grey Street.

Rev. H. L. Blamires
Taken in 1960 in his 90" year.
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St. John’s Methodist Church — Hamilton East Parish 1910-2010

Rev. Blamires acted as chairperson of the gathering which included Messrs J.R. Fow,
G. Jack, G. Jamieson, H. B. Jenkin, B.S. Jones, W. F. Mason, S. Meachem and J. E.
Tidd. A very full discussion took place on all aspects of the need, and it was resolved
to canvas the residents of the area to ascertain what support could be forthcoming for
the venture. The Quarterly Meeting was also requested to look favourably into the
move, and so develop the work in Hamilton East on property which the Church
owned.

Property Matters:

In the Trinity Minute Book for the year 1904, a reference was made to a section
owned by the Church somewhere in Naylor Street, in the following terms:-

"Resolved - that Mr. Wm. Hayes be allowed a yearly occupancy of Section
43, Hamilton East, on payment of a rental of 15s. yearly, and that three
months' notice be given Mr. Hayes should the Trustees desire to terminate the
occupancy."

Mr. Hayes later made an offer to purchase the section for £100, but this was declined.
On April 10, 1908, it was proposed,

"that the Loan Fund Committee (Christchurch,) be approached with a view to
their sanction being granted for the sale of the present allotment held by the
Church in Hamilton East, and the purchase of a section from Mr. Geo. Jack
for the sum of £130, such a section being situated on the comer of ....... and
......... streets, and the area being 90 feet x 120 feet, equaling ¥ of an acre."

Even the Secretary of the Trinity Trustees, Mr. S. Meachem, apparently did not know
where the section was situated at the time, and it is interesting to see that the minutes
were confirmed in May without the street names being added.

After a committee comprising Rev. Blamires, and Messrs. Meachem and Fow had
made a unanimous favourable report on the section, an important resolution was
adopted:-
"That the site offered by Mr. Jack, viz., ¥4 acre section with 90 ft. frontage to
Wellington Street and 120 ft. frontage to Grey Street was more desirable for
the erection of a Church than the Naylor Street site."

Mr. Jack stated his willingness to accept £10 deposit -£60 in six months, and the
balance of £60 three months later. In the meantime, he would pay rates, but draw rent
from a small cottage on the section by way of interest. It was proposed by Mr. J.E.
Tidd, seconded by Mr. J.R. Fow —

"That Mr. Jack's section be purchased on the terms mentioned."

Carried unanimously.
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St. John’s Methodist Church — Hamilton East Parish 1910-2010

Mr. G. Jack
That meeting was on January 29th 1909. And so the fine corner site on which St.
John's stands today came into the possession of the Church, and the Naylor Street
section was sold.

On this newly acquired site religious teaching had previously been given by a member
of the Congregational Church. There are no records of this available in archives, but a
cutting from the "Waikato Times," newspaper dated July 13th 1910 describing the
laying of the Foundation Stone of St John's on the 10th of that month states that:-

"Ancient history was recalled yesterday afternoon per medium of the
laying of the foundation stones of a new Methodist Church in Hamilton
East, for it was on that identical spot in the 70's that the Rev. H. S.
Davies, Congregational Minister, who afterwards joined the Church of
England, with the aid of a 'bit of stick' instead of a trowel, laid the
foundation stone of many a young man's education and character on
week days, and spread the glad tidings on the Sabbath. The old school
was burned over 20 years ago, and out of the ashes has arisen a new
church in reinforced concrete -the second of its kind in the Dominion."

The following does not belong to our story, but it will be of interest to know that
records of this Rev. H. S. Davies, held by the Church of England, show that he was
trained at the Lancashire Independent College (England) for four years, and was
admitted to the "Independent” Ministry in 1864. He offered his services to the Bishop
of Auckland for Ministerial work in Hamilton, and St. Peter's Vestry requested that he
be made an assistant Minister in the Hamilton district.

He took up his new appointment in 1879, at £72 per year, and served in Hamilton until
1881 when he was transferred to Ngaruawahia. He died in Northcote, Auckland, on
December 20th 1920, aged 81 years.
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St. John’s Methodist Church — Hamilton East Parish 1910-2010

The late Mr. E.J. Davey, for years a prominent Methodist Layperson of Hamilton, has
left it on record that he attended this Sunday school when he was a small boy about
five years of age. Little else is known. It is generally believed that there was no
Church building as such, but rather another building used for the purpose of training
young persons in the Christian faith by this devout minister, however it is not possible
to tell the full story with any accuracy. It is interesting to contemplate none-the-less
that some years before the Methodist people possessed the land it had been used to
guide and train young people to lead wholesome and healthy lives.

Development:

On April 5th, 1910, a reference was made that the final payment of $90.00 was made
to Mr. Geo. Jack, and the opinion expressed that the time was opportune for the
erection of a Mission Hall.

There was a growing feeling that the work of the Church in Hamilton East should be
advanced and around the time of the final payment to Mr. Jack, a meeting was held in
Mr. George Jamieson's butcher's shop to set the wheels in motion.

>
ar

' Mr. . Jamieson

A reference is made in the April 5th Minutes, that the Trustees were requested by the
Quarterly Meeting to consider the erection of a Sunday School, and it was
unanimously resolved, with a view to ascertaining the general feeling of the people in
the locality, to hold a meeting in Mr. Fow's house, (situated on the comer of Grey and
Wellington Streets, opposite the church site,) on the following Thursday evening.
Events moved quickly from this time on, for on April 26th sanction was given for the
formation of a separate "Trust" for Hamilton East, and it was agreed to transfer to this
newly formed "Trust" the section and the cottage recently purchased in full. A
donation of £100.00 was also made.
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St. John’s Methodist Church — Hamilton East Parish 1910-2010
First Trustees:

The names of the gentlemen who constituted the first "Trust" are as follows:-
Messrs S. Meachem, G. Jamieson, G. Jack, J.R. Fow, H.B. Jenkin and B.S. Jones.

These names were registered on the 9th May, 1910, just a few days after the
determining meeting. It is obvious that all members were anxious to get things moving
as no time was lost in organizing the affairs of the new "Trust." Mr. G. Jamieson was
still a member of the "Trust" when the booklet commemorating the 50th Anniversary
was written.

The Church:

The first minute book of the Hamilton East "Trust" has not been located and so those
early records are lost. The records available commence from the year 1921.
Fortunately from newspaper cuttings, reports from the "Methodist Times" and the
memory of some members who were alive when the 50th booklet was published, there
is a fairly accurate account of the progress of construction.

Arrangements were entered into with Snell Brothers builders, to construct a church
30ft., x 20ft., at a cost of £300.00 exclusive of furniture. A member of the "Trust", Mr.
B.S. Jones, carted the sand and shingle in his dray from the McFarlane Street area,
free of cost. The following is the report, printed in the "Methodist Times" dated
August 13th 1910, which describes the laying of the Foundation Stones:-

"A perfect, clear, calm day, in the midst of weeks of rain, favoured the
gathering on Wednesday, (the half day), July 13th, when the Foundation
Stones of St. John's Methodist Church, Hamilton East were well and
truly laid. The Church is to be of ferro-concrete, (steel reinforced
concrete), and is being erected to meet the requirements of the
Methodist families and the needs of the non-Church-goers in one of the
rising suburbs of the populous centre. In the absence of the Rev. G.
Bond, Chairman of the District, the function was presided over by the
Rev. H.R. Dewsbury of Auckland, who declared in forceful, eloquent
language, that no mutilated Gospel would be preached in the Church but
the glorious Gospel which has been the secret of the progress of
Methodism and of the world.

Supporting the Chairman on the platform were Revs. A. Gow
(Presbyterian), Pastor Mills (Baptist), J. Benning (St. Paul's),
H.L.Blamires (Trinity Wesley), and also Messrs. A.C. Caughey
(Auckland) and S. Meachem (Hamilton East), who, as loyal
representatives of Methodism, laid the foundation stones. The Secretary,
Mr. J.R. Fow, gave his report in a poetical vein.
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St. John’s Methodist Church — Hamilton East Parish 1910-2010
The Treasurer, Mr. H.B. Jenkin, gathered the collection - amounting to
nearly £30.00 - a response and liberality of support which greatly
cheered the Trustees.

Mrs. Blamires was Organist."

Mr. F.C. Daniell was the Architect. Behind one of the Foundation Stones there is
purported to be a bottle which contains coins, a stamp, one of the Circuit Plans, a
paper which contains reports of agitation against bookmakers, against the exhibition
of films of a then recent fight, and the details of the recent achievements of aviators;
also a document giving the names of the Church Officers, the Mayor of the town and
an estimate of the population of the district.

Although there have been a number of explorations, nothing has been discovered to
verify the presence of the said bottle - it is well and truly buried.

Hunting for the elusive bottle — Neville Metcalf and Gordon Major.

On the day of the Foundation Stone Laying, some 150 people were served afternoon
tea in the Masonic Hall nearby. In the evening, in Trinity Wesley Church, the Rev.
Dewsbury gave an exposition of the text - "Greater works than these shall ye do
because I go to my Father.” John 14:12. - And so the great day came to an end, amidst
much rejoicing - a day which gave promise of greater things to be.

It had been decided that a Sunday school would be conducted in the new Church when
completed, and it was hoped that the opening Worship Services would be held early in
the following October. Obviously the course towards gaining certificates of
compliance was not as circuitous in 1910 as it seems to be a century later.
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St. John’s Methodist Church — Hamilton East Parish 1910-2010

St. John’s Church (original)
Photo by Courtesy Waikato Historical Society

Opening:

There were some delays however, and it was not until Sunday, November 13th, that
the Church was opened with much rejoicing by the 110 persons present. The Service
of Worship took place at 2.30 p.m. and the Dedication was performed by the Rev. A.J.
Reed of Te Aroha. The Rev. Reed was well known and appreciated by the
congregation of Trinity Wesley Church, Collingwood Street where, as a Theological
Student he had been "Pulpit Supply" prior to the Rev. J.T. Pinfold commencing his
ministry there in 1903.

The Rev. Reed preached from the text, "One thing | have desired of the Lord, that will
| seek after, that I may dwell in the House of the Lord." Psalm 27:4. The Trinity
Wesley Church Choir led the singing and the Anthem for the occasion was, "Send out
Thy Light." The choirmaster was Mr. S. Meachem and the organist for the occasion
was Mr. T.L. Hames.

The evening Service was conducted by Mr. W.F. Mason.

On the following Wednesday evening, November 16th, a celebratory tea was held in
the Masonic Hall. Later in the evening a concert was enjoyed in the new Church
which seated 96 people.

Mr. J.R. Fow congratulated the people on the realization of their dream. The total cost
of the building is stated to have been £350.00. Chairs were purchased instead of pews
and the financial situation at the time was:- Cash in hand-£73.00; Mortgage - £250.00.
A successful bazaar was held on December 14th' at which £40.00 was realized.
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St. John’s Methodist Church — Hamilton East Parish 1910-2010

We thank the Waikato Historical Society for the photograph of the original church. It
is interesting to see just what the little church looked like. To those early, enthusiastic
members it was indeed a House of God. Services were held regularly from that special
day in November 1910 and Sunday school was well attended each Sunday afternoon.
All smaller social functions were held in the Church where the porch doubled as a
kitchen for the preparation of the inevitable suppers and teas.

Union:

In 1913, on February 6th the union of the Methodist Church of New Zealand (which
included the Wesleyan, Bible Christian Church and the United Methodist Free
Churches) and the Primitive Methodist Church took place.

After much discussion, the Trusts of the two churches in Hamilton, Trinity Wesleyan
Church, Collingwood Street and St Paul's Primitive Church, London Street were
united to administer the two properties with a view to integrating the two
congregations. These discussions resulted in St Paul's being chosen as the church in
which both congregations on the west side of the river would meet and the church was
subsequently enlarged to accommaodate the larger united congregation.

Closing of Trinity Wesleyan Church:

In January, 1915, the Trinity Wesleyan Church was moved to become the Hall at St.
Paul's Church, where it was used as the Hall until the new Methodist Centre was
opened in 1962. (Incidentally, that Hall was transported to Wesley Church in
Claudlands to become their Sunday School Hall and was eventually sold to Mr. Daniel
Petersen, son of June Petersen, a loved and valued member of St. John's until her
death in 2002. Daniel transformed it into his home on Bruntwood Road.) Mr. George
Jack was entrusted with the task of removal, for which he charged £60. The site in
Collingwood Street was developed by the Hamilton Trust as a full commercial area.
Although the building which still bears the name of Wesley Chambers is no longer
owned by the Methodist Church, the ground on which that building and others stand is
still owned by the Hamilton Methodist Trust. The decision to move away from the
centre of the town to St. Paul's in London Street proved a wise one.

St. John's Hall #1:

In October, 1915 there was a request from Horotiu that the Collingwood Street Hall
should be removed to Horotiu, but the request was declined and it was instead given to
St. John's at Hamilton East on February 14th, 1916. Once again, Mr. George Jack was
given the task of transporting the Hall to a site beside the Church in Wellington Street
- a task which called forth no little skill and ingenuity. It was cut into sections and
hauled by traction engine to its place.
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St. John’s Methodist Church — Hamilton East Parish 1910-2010

Before the Hall was moved and available, the accommodation for the Sunday school
was severely taxed in the Church. An interesting reference was made on the Circuit
Plan for June, 1915, where it was stated that a measure of relief had been secured by
using one room in the little cottage which stood on the Church property. The room
was papered and infant chairs were provided by a generous donor, but the
arrangement was regarded as temporary only. The real solution came when the
Collingwood Street Hall was re-opened on its new site.

In the "Methodist Times" dated July 22nd, 1916, the following report appears:-

"A scheme to provide sufficient accommodation for our Sunday
school at Hamilton East has just been brought to a successful issue.
Wesley Hall, which for some years served as a School Room when our
main Church was in Collingwood Street, Hamilton, has been transferred
to this side of the river, and we are now able to rejoice in the possession
of a fine spacious building, which will supply a long felt need and
should answer for many years to come. To celebrate the re-opening, a
most successful tea and concert was held on June 16th, when probably
300 people - including children assembled. During the course of the
evening, congratulatory speeches were given by Mr. T. L. Hames
(Circuit Steward), who presided, the Rev. T. J. Wallis (Superintendent),
and Mr. F.C. Daniell, representing Hamilton West Trust. A healthy
balance sheet presented by Mr. M. Kiddle, showed that practically the
whole cost of the scheme (nearly £140) had been gathered by means of
subscriptions and a Japanese Fair."

The number of people present at the laying of the foundation stones of the Church in
1910 (150), at the Opening of the Church (110), and those present at the re-opening of
the Hall in 1916 (300), tells the story of the rapid growth of the Church and Sunday
school work. With the opening of the Hall, too, ended the use of the Masonic Hall for
Sunday school teas, and the larger functions which the little Church could not easily
contain, but we remain thankful for the cooperation received from the members of the
Masonic Lodge.

Extensions to the Church:

With the continued growth of the Hamilton East suburb, together with the vigour of
the Methodist people, the little Church became taxed to the uttermost, and some
enlargement needed to be carried out to accommodate all who came. As far back as
1914, the members of the Trust realized the need to enlarge the Church. On November
9th, 1921, the Trustees asked Mr. George Jack to present plans and an estimated cost
of an enlargement .scheme. This he did to an adjourned meeting, held at the
Parsonage, a few days later. His price for the work, together with seven electric light
points, was £508, which was acceptable to the meeting and Mr. Jack was asked to
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proceed with the work. Mr. W. Harris offered to loan £200 to the Trust free of interest,
which was accepted with thanks. A special building fund in the Post Office of £148,
together with some £59 cash in hand, promises of support from the people, and some
help from the Bank, provided the money with which the work was to be done. It was
not surprising that the work cost more than the original estimate, and Mr. Jack was
finally paid £702/177-, but it would appear that 21 pews, costing £5/5/- each, and £22
extra for Choir seating, was included in this amount. As can be imagined, the debt was
discharged by sales of work, donations from the Ladies' Guild, and anniversary
concerts, as well as a large sale of work and concert at the extensions Foundation
Stone laying, which totalled £52 for that day.

We catch a glimpse of the resourcefulness of Mr. Jack in what he proposed to do to
enlarge the building, and it speaks of the confidence the Trustees had in him when he
was unanimously asked to proceed. He proposed to cut the south wall at the comers,
swing the whole concrete wall round on rollers to form a west wall on the Grey Street
frontage, build a wall of the same pattern on the east side and a back wall, then carry
the roof over the whole. A lesser skilled or courageous man would have hesitated to
have suggested such a course, but the whole work was completed to the entire
satisfaction of all. We are reliably informed that on the Saturday before the Monday
on which the wall was to be swung around, Mr. Jack woke his son Fred very early in
the morning and said, "Come on, we are going to swing the wall this morning, before
all those people arrive." Apparently the Waikato Times had been covering the
preparations for the alterations and many were waiting to see the wall fall over. It did
not fall and stands to this day as a tribute to a courageous and skilled builder that was
Mr. George Jack.

The Foundation Stones of this extension were laid on April 26th, 1922, by two
working members of the Trust, Messrs. H. A. Bunn and W. Harris. There was a large
gathering present, which was presided over by the Mayor of the City, Mr. J. R. Fow.
Rev. E. O. Blamires (a brother of. the Rev. H. L. Blamires), who was Superintendent
of the Circuit at St. Paul's, also spoke. Other Ministers of the City were present, as
well as Rev. J. D. McArthur, a former Minister.

The re-opening services were conducted over two Sundays. On Sunday, August 20th,
the guest preacher was Rev. C. H. Olds, of Auckland (brother of the then present
Minister). Anthems: Te Deum and "King of Kings." At 2.30 p.m. Rev. J. D. McArthur
conducted a service especially for the youth. On the Monday a tea and Conversazione
was held. The second Sunday, August 27th, the preachers were Revs. E. 0. Blamires
and E. T. Olds. Anthems: "King of Kings" and "Radiant Mom." It was certainly
another great occasion.
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The riginal Church and Sunday School Buildng 1920’s Rev. E. T. Olds
During the alterations, services had been held in the Hall. Pews were now in the
Church instead of chairs, as formerly, and a large supply of new Hymn books was
required to meet the increased numbers attending worship.

The seating accommodation was more than doubled. A Minister's Vestry and Choir
room were made by putting a partition about eight feet inside the rear wall, and
dividing this narrow area into two small rooms.

Further Extensions to the Church:

With the further growth of the church membership and work in the community,
additional extensions became necessary. In order to lighten the interior of the church,
Mr. W. B, Young submitted a plan for a large window, which he generously offered to
have made and placed in the church as a gift. This was gratefully accepted, the work
being done in 1940. This gift considerably enhanced the church. The window which
faces towards the east and situated behind the congregation in the present
configuration of the church now has a Venetian blind on it to keep the sun from
blinding the preacher on a Sunday morning. It is also used to cut down the light when
power point presentations are made during worship.

The following year the Trust listened again to Mr. Young, as he outlined proposals to
remove the partition, and build two sizable vestries at the rear of the church, large
enough to be used as Bible Class rooms as well as Minister's and Choir Vestries. The
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whole work was to cost approximately £600; Application was made to the Hamilton
Trust for a grant of £250, which was subsequently approved. Gifts amounting to over
£500 were reported a little later, and approval sought for the work to proceed.
However, it was not until late in 1945 that plans were finally approved and Mr. Young
carried out the work between January and February, 1946. This extension gave greater
choir and congregational space.

In 1947, the choir asked the Trust to consider altering the Sanctuary of the church to
make it possible for them to be seated in one unit, and not divided in the centre by the
Pulpit. The Trust approved plans to make this possible by moving the Pulpit to the
east side within the Sanctuary. This revision was done in 1948. A donation of £100
was given towards this work by the Ladies' Sales Committee, an independent group of
Church women, who catered for light luncheons at the Claudelands Cattle Sales. Mr.
V. Jack, son of Mr. and Mrs. George Jack, donated the cost of the new Pulpit, a
generous donor gave the pews, and a special effort by the Choir provided the balance
of the money.

In the early 1970's Mr. Des. Jack proposed further improvements to the sanctuary.

These were approved and carried out by working bees. The work included the resiting
of the organ and the pulpit to the left of the sanctuary. The church was recarpeted in a
magenta colour and so it remained until 1994/95 when a major re-vamp was initiated.

Transept and Porch Enlargement:

From the beginning, congregations and membership continued to increase to the
extent that when the Sunday school senior classes were in the morning worship, small
forms had to be placed at the front to provide extra seating, and .chairs were often
placed down each aisle. Extension was again called for, but the question was, how? a
gallery? This was well discussed by the Trust and a drawing made, but finally not
proceeded with. Then, a few months later, Mr. W. B. Young presented the Trustees
with a drawing of an eastern transept, which, he said, he and Mrs. Young would like
to present to the Church as a gift in gratitude to God, and in joy that a further
extension was needed. Needless to say, the Trust was overwhelmed with the
magnificence of the offer and after approval was finally obtained, Mr. Young
proceeded with the work early in 1959. The gift was dedicated by the Rev. C.B
Oldfield on May 10th (Mothers' Day) that year at a Family Service.

At the same time as the Transept was being built, the Trustees asked Mr. Young to be
responsible for the enlarging of the entrance porch.

Mr. V. Jack moved the Grey Street wall out by six feet to enable this to be done, and
an open and spacious vestibule was built. This vestibule remained the entry Foyer for
a number of years.
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Enlarging the church porch 1959

Dedication of enlarged porch and new Transept 1959
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The 1995 Additions:

For a number of years there was a feeling that there should be better access to the Hall
from the Church. In 1994 plans were set in motion for this to happen. It was then that
the sanctuary floor was raised to level, the piles were adapted and a removable dais
was put in place so that the worship centre was no longer fixed, but able to be moved
from traditional long aisles to worship in a horseshoe shape in keeping with modern
trends in worship. The louver type windows were replaced with windows encased in
aluminium joinery. These windows have since been treated with glass tinting which
has cut down heat and glare in the sanctuary. At this time the church was joined to the
Centre and the large entry foyer created. This also incorporated the eastern transept so
generously gifted to the church in 1959 by Mr. and Mrs W. B. Young.

The church and foyer were carpeted in a serviceable green and the dado, a soft apricot
shade was put in place as a cladding over insulation to protect worshippers from the
cold of the concrete walls. Most of the pews were sold and the money used to assist
with the building costs. The lovely old pipe organ which had been giving some
problems was deemed to be too costly to repair. It was sold and an electronic organ
purchased as a replacement. Comfortable chairs were purchased, many members
bought a chair and so the new look sanctuary was completed and dedicated on
December 3rd 1995.

The gutted éanétuary 1995 and pipe organ about to be removed
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The new chairs were too late for the opening but well worth waiting for!
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Additional Land Purchased:

On January 26th, 1923, the Trust resolved to purchase the adjoining section to the
Church property in Grey Street which was owned by Mrs. Nixon, for £175. The
generosity of the men of the St. John's congregation towards the work of God in
Hamilton East was shown once again. A deposit of £25 was paid on that date - an
advance by Mr. W. Harris - and later that year he advanced the remaining £150 to
fully purchase the section.

When the young people of the Church asked permission to use the land to put down a
tennis court, it was found that there was not sufficient width available to do so. The
Trust was approached about the matter and, with "the object of keeping our young
people together in connection with the Church,"” the meeting on July 15th, 1925,
decided to acquire the next section again in Grey Street, for a similar sum to the other-
namely £175. £25 was paid to a Mrs. Mills, and the mortgage of £150 to Mrs. Nixon
was taken over.

Difficulties were encountered to meet the repayments of loan monies to Mr. Harris,
and later to Mr. A. H. Davies of £100. The Ladies' Guild was solidly behind all the
work of the men, and raised a great deal of money over these years by different
efforts, such as Fairs and Stalls at the Winter Shows. However, in spite of all this
noble effort the Trust remained in difficulties from these land purchases and loans for
a number of years, so in 1936, after the Tennis Club had become defunct, the last
acquired section was sold for £150, thus considerably reducing the debt. No one in
those days could see how land values would appreciate, or that possible future needs
would require that land for church development.

However, when, with the continued expansion of the City and the Church life and
work in Hamilton East, the Trustees were advised that the narrow section next to the
Hall in Wellington Street on which a small house and a small cottage stood, was for
sale, it was resolved to purchase the land at a cost of £2400. This was on February 9th
1953. The urgency of not allowing the opportunity to pass was appreciated by all, but
how was Payment to be made? The Church had just purchased a Pipe Organ, and
finances were taxed to the utmost. An approach was made for special consideration by
the Hamilton Trust, but no help could be given by them for two or three years. Again
dedicated men rose to the occasion. Seven Trustees offered to loan £300 each, and the
Ladies' Sales Committee gave the additional £300 needed to make a cash purchase.
When the Hamilton Trust was later able to help, the finances were revised, by the
Hamilton Trust giving £200 a year for six years, and by a loan from the bank. The
debt for the property was eventually discharged in 1961.

In 1979 the Trust purchased two old house properties at 22 and 24 Wellington Street
at a cost of $21,666.00 and $18,670.00 respectively. These were used for Refugee
housing for a number of years until the houses came to a stage where major
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renovations were needed to bring them up to a good standard. The need for refugee
housing diminished and the Parish felt that a better option for outreach would be
affordable housing for the elderly. The Parish had already invested in a complex of six
at Wesley Court connected to Wesley Church in Heaphy Terrace; these were filling a
great need. The little houses were demolished and permission was granted to proceed
with plans to have five two bedroom, pre-built houses designed and supplied by Jack
House Transit placed on the site. And so St. John's Close was dedicated on August
28th 1993 and continues to provide affordable pensioner housing.

Hillcrest:

Just as in the earlier days, in 1910, St. John's became an extension of Trinity Wesley
Church life and work, and was fostered by the parent congregation, so in 1945 St.
John's became interested in the Hillcrest development and began thinking in terms of
property for a possible Church site. A very attractive position was acquired in
December, 1948, for £205, this was situated opposite the school, and it was not long
before it was deemed wise to begin by placing a Church Hall on the property. Mr. W.
B. Young drew the plans, and erected an attractive and useful all-purpose hall, which
was opened on May 2nd, 1953, by the President of the Conference, Rev. J. H. Alien.
An additional section was bought at the rear in 1953 for £300. The property was
administered by a separate Trust and the Hillcrest Methodist Church became a special
place of worship for twenty years. In 1973 it became part of the St Francis
Cooperating Parish, a cooperative venture of three denominations, Anglican,
Methodist and Presbyterian, and so ended a specific Methodist presence in the
Hillcrest area.

The Parsonage:

In 1919 a house at 66 Firth Street was bought from Mr. William Hayes, but it had
been leased from him since 1915, when the .Rev. C. M. Roberts took up residence.
The cost of the land was reckoned at £150, and the house at £850, but the cost finally
agreed on was £975. Up until 1945, the property was owned and administered by the
Hamilton Trust, but in March of «that year it was handed over free of encumbrances to
the Trustees of the St. John's Church, and that body became the administrators of the
property. This property remained the Parsonage until October 1964 when the present
parsonage at 20 Wellington Street was dedicated and the Rev. A.O. Jones and his
family moved in to the spacious and comfortable brick dwelling.

The building of the Parsonage was the work of Mr. W.B.Young and his team of
builders who actually completed the building while erecting the St John's Centre. It
was a very busy few years.

The gas heaters were a big improvement on the old fireplaces, but after fifty years, the

working life of the gas fire in the dining room was over. The lounge gas heater is still

working well in 2010. Heat pumps have been installed over recent years, in the dining
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room and in the hallway making the house a great deal more comfortable. In 2009 the
kitchen and dining room area of the parsonage were brought up to date and this has
made a big difference for the Presbyter and her husband. It is a large house built to the
specifications of the 1960's and we are grateful to the generosity and foresight of the
men who built it.

Extensions to the Hall:

When the Hall came to St. John's in 19186, it had three small rooms at the rear, the
middle one possessed an open fireplace and the eastern one a small bench and sink.
The rooms were small and inconvenient for large functions in the hall, and for Sunday
school purposes. In 1934 the Helpers' League was given permission to make these
rooms more convenient at no cost to the Trust. The fireplace was removed and two of
the rooms were made into one.

In 1938 the suggestion was made that a Beginners' room be built on the side of the
hall which could also be used for smaller meetings, such as the Ladies' Guild, and to
be known as a Church Parlour. A quick canvas was made for funds, the result of
which was encouraging.

Plans were drawn by Mr. F. T. Hawkins, and early in 1939 a working bee, ably
directed by the Rev. G. E. Brown, almost completed the room in one day, Materials
cost £138/19/11. It was later dedicated by the Chairman of the district. This became a
most useful part of the Hall. It was enlarged by the incorporation of the Scout Hall in
1946 and was in constant use for many purposes until the Hall was demolished in
1965.
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Sunday School Group taken 1939 outside S.S. Buiding.
Page 20



St. John’s Methodist Church — Hamilton East Parish 1910-2010
Scout Hall:

In 1921 a Boy Scout Troop was given permission to use the Hall for weekly meetings,
and in April 1922, they were granted the right to erect a building on the unused
Church property facing Grey Street for their purposes. This Troop functioned until
about 1932. At this stage we find the Trustees considering whether they should move
the Scout building nearer to the Parlour to become a classroom for the Sunday School,
however it was subsequently decided to grant another five years for the hut to remain
on the Church section, but that a Sunday School class be held therein.

In 1938 the hut was moved nearer to the Parlour, and in 1942 the "Trust" asked the
Scout authorities to remove the hut from the property. After renewing this request a
number of times, together with an offer to purchase the building, but with no reply
forthcoming, the "Trust" took over the building, and had it moved to become an
enlargement of the Parlour in 1946.

New Kitchen and Stage:

In 1955 Mr. F. T. Hawkins presented a sketch plan for a large kitchen to be built on to
the Hall, and Mr. B. Young offered to build a much needed new stage. The new
kitchen was built by voluntary labour, and by much donated materials in 1956. Mr.
Young was thanked for his fine gift of the stage of unique design in 1955. When not in
use; the stage floor became the back wall of the hall thus leaving the rear room of the
hall free for other purposes.

Murray Young Memorial Building:

When Mr. and Mrs. W. B. Young's son, Murray, was accidentally killed in 1950 they,
with their family, offered to present a building to the Church as a fitting memorial.
This was to comprise several classrooms and a Parlour, all fully furnished. The Trust,
representing the Church, was deeply moved by this great gift, which cost several
thousand pounds. Plans were approved and the building was erected in 1951, and
dedicated by Rev. Principal E. W. Hames, M.A. on Sunday morning of April 15th of
that year. This building proved to be a boon to the Church. Sunday school and Bible
Classes had adequate space, and the Parlour room was used for nearly all the weekday
meetings of the Church.

Over the years with the decline in Sunday school numbers and with meetings being
held in the Centre, the rooms in the Memorial Building were not being fully utilized
and by the early 1990's four of them had become storage rooms and offices for Open
Air Campaigners and Bible Society. Another problem had also arisen, that of
vandalism. Copper roofing, downpipes and spouting had been stolen from the church
buildings and other vandalism had taken place. It was decided that a caretaker on site
could well be a deterrent to the property damage that was occurring. Thus those rooms
not used by Sunday school or the minister/presbyter as a study were converted into a
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small two bedroom flat for our first caretaker /cleaner and her son. The building
conversion was completed by Jack House Transit Ltd. In 1995 at a very reasonable
cost to the church. This has been a good move and although theft of the copper fittings
is still a problem, the other acts of vandalism have decreased.

The New Hall. Hall#2:

The old Hall which served Hamilton and Hamilton East Methodism for many years,
was in full and constant use up until the early 1960's, but with its age, it began to show
signs that before many more years it would have to be replaced. A replacement fund
was begun by two generous donations, and was steadily built up by a regular amount
from the Circuit Budget System. It was not until 1967 that a modern centre was
erected to provide for the future life and work of the Church.

In 1959, Mr W.B.Young promoted a plan for a new Methodist Centre at St John's. By
1962 a great deal of enthusiasm and substantial funds had been accumulated and there
was a strong desire among the Trustees and Church members to proceed as soon as
possible with the new Centre. At the same time, plans were underway for extensive
renovations to the Parsonage at 66 Firth Street but the Rev. A. O. Jones presented a
strong case for the erection of a new parsonage within three years and he intimated
that he and his wife would be prepared to forego the benefits of the proposed
improvements if the trustees agreed to his proposal. A Centre Building Committee,
comprising Messrs. V. A. Jack, W. B. Young, F. T. Hawkins, D. V. Jack, H. J.
Johnson, H. Longbottom (Secretary), and Mrs W. Storry, was formed and it was
resolved to ask Mr. W. B. Young to erect the new buildings as soon as the Committee
had finalized plans and the necessary finance was obtained.

The rear portion of the section at 22 Wellington Street was purchased from Mr. Cyril
Wright for £700.00 and Mr. Wright gave a right of first refusal to the Trust should he
ever decide to sell the remainder of his property.

In the same year Rev. A. O. Jones recommended that first priority be given to the
erection of a new parsonage and that the erection of the new centre should follow.

The following new Trustees were appointed: Messrs. L. Haynes, K.W. Dey, A.E.
Baker, C. Roberts, D. W. Young, T. F. Whimster, N. E. Metcalfe, and Mrs. A. W.
Bettany.

In February 1963 a decision was made to proceed with the planning of both Centre
and Parsonage as soon as possible. The rear portion of the house section at 24
Wellington Street was purchased from the Pinfold Estate for £750.00. Later that year
Mr. W.B. Young presented his plan for a new brick parsonage, comprising lounge,
living room, study, and four bedrooms, with all rooms of generous proportions and his
magnificent offer to erect the house and garage on an ‘at cost' basis was accepted with
gratitude and alacrity by the Trustees.
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The little old cottage at 20A Wellington Street was vacated by tenants, Mr. and Mrs.
Ron Jenkins, and it was used for some time as a Youth Coffee Club. The young
people of those years created quite an atmosphere in the cottage with their band of
drums and guitars etc. The warm aroma of coffee and the "big beat' sound that issued
forth from the little building did much to enliven the area.

For some three years Mr. Les Haynes had acted as custodian at the Hall and he had
also been responsible for all the bookings. In 1964, his duties were taken over by Mr.
Bill Storry. Electric heating was installed in the Church. The building of the new
parsonage proceeded and it was officially dedicated and opened on 31 October 1964.
The total cost of this fine asset was £14,000.00. This was financed by interest-free
loans from Trustees and church members, - £4.000.00 and the balance of £10,000.00
from the sale of the parsonage in Firth Street to Mr. Stan West. The little cottage at
20A Wellington Street was removed. This was the age of "stomp dancing' and the
noise from one of the youth dances in the old hall reached such a level that neighbours
complained to the Trustees who then produced an edict that 'stomp dancing’ must be
eliminated from all future social programmes. A letter was also sent to Bible Class
Leaders laying down strict rules for conduct at dances in the future.

In 1966 Mr. Ivan Fell was appointed as a Trustee. The house at 20 Wellington Street
which stood on the land now occupied by the Centre was sold to Mr. Bert Johnson for
£80.00 who moved it to a site off the Narrows Road at Tamahere. The old Hall was
stripped of its contents and Mr. Paul Scown removed it at no cost to the Trust. A great
many people were sad to see the Hall go. Its old timbers had echoed to the sounds
from many Men's Fellowship concerts, Sunday School Anniversaries, Youth events
and countless social gatherings. Those involved in Sunday school work still have
many hallowed memories of their work among generations of children whom they
taught over the years. It was in that old hall that many youngsters learned of the love
of God and were guided in their Christian journey.

In that same year, a Government subsidy of $10,000.00 was given for the building of
the new Centre. In 1967 the building of the Centre proceeded after much detailed
planning and it was officially opened on Saturday 16 September 1967. On Sunday 17
September special services of worship were held, the preachers being Rev. C.B.
Oldfield and Rev. A. K. Petch respectively. Several functions were held during the
following week to celebrate the opening culminating in a concert on Saturday night 23
September. The final cost of the Centre, including elaborate sound and lighting
systems, all pianos, seating and other equipment was $51,696.00. At the time of the
opening of the Centre, the Trustees were short of the above amount by $10,500.00 but
the deficit was covered by promised grants from the Hamilton Methodist Trust and by
low-interest loans from members. The provision for this fine complex at such and
economic price was made possible by many generous persons.

Page 23



St. John’s Methodist Church — Hamilton East Parish 1910-2010
a) The magnificent contribution from Mr. W.B. Young, main contractor, Mr. H.G.
Young, plumber, and Mr. A.E. Baker, electrician. Each one of these did their work
on an "at cost' basis with no charge for their own labour.

b) Substantial cash donations from Messrs. H.J. Johnson, H.G. Young and W.B.
Young.

c) Generous stewardship giving from all members.
d) Interest-free and low interest loans from many members.
e) The continuing generous support of the Hamilton Methodist Trust.

Mr. Alan Baker was appointed as Trust Steward to be in charge of the Centre and its
bookings. In 1976 Mr. and Mrs. Dave Young took over the Centre Bookings and over
the years there have been truly dedicated people who have continued that task. May
Johnston gave many years of her time and ability from late 1980's until 2003 when
Doreen Lennox took over the responsibility until 2006 when the Office Administrator
took charge of bookings for the Church and Centre.

In 1968 Messrs Des. Jack and Trevor Clements were appointed Trustees. Mr. Alan
Baker was appointed Trust Secretary in 1972 in place of Mr. Herbert Longbottom who
continued to act as Treasurer. Mr Ken. Dey replaced Mr. Alan Baker that same year.

St. John's Life and Work:

When the Church was opened, the membership was small, comprising comparatively
few families and not many children. Over the years the Church membership steadily
increased, and in 1960 at the Fiftieth Celebrations there were 209 communicant
members on the Roll and the Sunday school had grown to 140, with a staff of 20
teachers. There were four Bible Classes with a total membership of 56. Numbers
peaked in 1962/63 when there were 234 members on the roll, 170 children in Sunday
school, 41 on the Cradle Roll and 63 in the Bible Classes. In the 1960's a Company of
the Girls' Life Brigade met weekly with a role of 16 to 24 girls. The leader was Miss
Judith Chambers followed by Mrs. Alvina Hutchesson. Because of the rapid growth of
outlying suburbs, many families moved out of the area about this time. At the seventy-
fifth celebrations, the St. John's Church membership was 137. There was a Sunday
school of 40 and 30 in the Bible Class. Now we are One Hundred and our Parish
Membership Roll stands at 200 with 370 persons under pastoral care.

Sunday School/Children’s Church:

From an enormous roll in the 1960's of 140 plus, the Sunday school numbers declined
slowly but steadily. Throughout all the years a dedicated band of teachers continued to
give instruction to the children of the church. By 1993 there were but four children in
the church of Sunday school age and enthusiasm for teaching was at a very low ebb.
However the feeling that whether there were two or three young children or twenty
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two or three, these children deserved to have a special time of instruction. With this in
mind, the Sunday school was re-vitalised. The age range was from three to twelve.
Not an easy spread to cover. Over five years the numbers grew to twelve children, the
ethnicity changed over those years to a multi cultural group of children. In 1997
Doreen Lennox became the superintendent. The name was changed to Children's
Church and has continued to serve the children. Numbers fluctuate from as few as
three or four to over thirty and the age spread is still from pre-school and creche to
intermediate age young people. The "Parlour” was updated in 2009 and has become a
delightful and welcoming room for Children's Church. Young mothers are a great help
in the creche and some of the younger members of the congregation assist with
Children's church regularly as does Lindsay Bettany.

Bible Classes /Youth Group:

The Youth Group has suffered in much the same way as the Children's Church over
the years. From the hey days of 1960s when there were more than 60 young people in
the Bible Classes, we now have a group of from 3 to 5 to 10 to 12. Des and Dale Jack
have been devoted leaders over many years. They have been assisted by Veitomoni
Siufanga and Sione Molitika at times, but they have been the mainstay, the glue that
has held the Youth together. The Youth Group is a multi-racial group who share their
considerable talents with the church in many ways.

They attend Parachute each year in good numbers and also Easter Camp. At this point
it is important to note that former members of St. John's Youth Group are the
organizers of Easter Camps in the Waikato/Bay of Plenty area.

Church Music:

A Senior Choir has led the singing through almost all of the past hundred years and
tribute is paid to their fine contribution in Worship services. Over the years many
dedicated people have been part of The Choir" and although numbers have fluctuated
especially in later years, the commitment shown by these people in their regular
attendance at rehearsals and at Sunday Worship is greatly appreciated. In 1960 the
Choir had 28 members and a very wide range of anthems and music most of which
have been discarded over the years as the music of fifty years ago no longer fits, and
with excellent modem music by hymn writers and composers, the twenty-first century
worship is well catered for. Now in 2010 the Choir is very ably led by Lynley Parker
and has a full membership of around half the 1960 numbers. The choir leads the
singing on Sunday mornings throughout the year and has been instrumental in
introducing new and modern hymns and songs into worship in a very acceptable
manner.

We must not forget the Tongan and Fijian Choirs who greatly enrich the worship
especially on the first Sunday of each month when they take their turn with either the
Introit or the Anthem on a three way roster with the Palangi Choir.
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A Junior Choir had a place in the life of the church for a number of years. In the early
years a strong choir of fifty children and young people was connected to the Band of
Hope, which began in 1919 and continued until 1929. Mrs. A.M. Woods, of Raglan
(nee Katie Jack) was a strong leader and the Pianist during that time.

In 1933, the Organist, Mr. Moore, was the Junior Choir teacher. Mrs. A, W. Bettany
was the leader in the years 1936-1938.

During the Ministry of the Rev. W. Gatman, a Junior Choir was reformed as part of
the morning worship for a number of years; Mrs. Gatman was the leader then. In the
1950's, Mr. Ken Lewis again revived the Junior Choir, and ably led it to victory on a
number of occasions at the Waikato Winter Show Competitions. In 1960, the Junior
Choir was still a formidable force of 30 young voices who sang each Sunday morning
at worship delighting all in the congregation. Sadly there is no Junior Choir as such
today; they went into recess in 1978.

This was not the end of young people sharing their abilities within the church. In 1966
Des. Jack and his wife, Dale were instrumental in forming a group known as "The
Wayfarers" created from the many talented teenagers within the church. These young
people brought much pleasure to St. John's congregation and also to many other
churches and organizations in Hamilton. The Wayfarers sang many popular songs to
the accompaniment of guitars and the famous double bass made by the late Mr. Don
White and played by Jeremy Whimster. Many of those attending these celebrations
will remember this group with great affection.

In 1983 Mrs. Jessie Clements, who gave great service to St. John's over the years as an
organist and a choir mistress, formed a young people's group called "The Good News
Singers." These young people added much to the worship services over a number of
years. It is interesting to note that Mrs. Lynley Parker was a conductor of this group
and her skills have not diminished over the years. Now in 2010 we are greatly blessed
by our Tongan Youth who delight and inspire us on the occasions when they share
their music and their liturgical dance with us. What a wealth of great young people St
John's has had the privilege of nurturing over the years.

In recent years band instruments have been purchased for the use of our youth. These
include guitars, keyboard, drums and sound systems and are used to great advantage in
youth services and other activities. The drums are now a regular feature of Sunday
morning worship services.

Women's Fellowships:

No words can do adequate justice to the work of the women of the church, who were
formed into a properly constituted Guild in the early years. Their work all through the
years has been simply magnificent, but especially in the first 15 years when they
helped carry the financial burden, and raised hundreds of pounds by their sales of
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work and similar functions. The home of Mr, and Mrs. Geo. Jack was frequently the
place where they met to work and inspire each other in all good endeavours.

In the Rev. E. T. Olds' time, this free group of ladies was formally constituted,
resulting in the late Mrs. E. E. Watkins being President, and Mrs. T. E. Hutt
Secretary/Treasurer. The latter was replaced by Mrs. A. Gower, who continued as
Secretary for many years.

In the Rev. J. Dennis' ministry, the younger women were formed into a Helpers'
League, and this body too worked in an enthusiastic- manner over a number of years
.They have made many useful gifts to the Church, besides encouraging one another in
fellowship. In 1953 it was decided by both Guild and League to amalgamate, and as a
strong Women's Guild it functioned until the Guild and MWMU became the New
Zealand Methodist Women's Fellowship in 1964. The ladies met twice a month,
alternating between evening and afternoon, to allow all to be present at least once a
month. This functioned most happily, and the unity of the work together with
increased fellowship and effectiveness justified the move.

The Women's Missionary Auxiliary interest began about 1921, within the Guild. It
was decided to make four meetings a year of missionary interest, and to give the
collection of the day to this cause.

During Rev.F.E. Leadley's ministry, a separate auxiliary was formed; Mrs. Leadley
was elected President and Mrs. T.E. Hutt Secretary/Treasurer, later to hand over to
Mrs. W. Stony. These MWMU meetings were well attended, and women from as far
away as Matangi and Rototuna were regularly present.

The Methodist Women's Fellowship has been ably led by several women who have
given wonderful support to the Church over the years, and not just to the local church.
Mrs. Bemie Dey served as President of the Waikato District Methodist Women's
Fellowship from 1975 to 1978. Catherine Dickie served as President of Waikato
Thames Valley District from 2005 to 2008. Mrs Joyce Dey was National President
from 1976 to 1978. Joyce Thompson and Catherine Dickie were part of the 2002 to
2004 National Executive.

For many years there were two groups, one met in the afternoon and one in the
evening each month Drama and sewing groups operated during the 1970s and the
Drama Group provided wonderful entertainment for many years. In the past twenty
years, MWF has continued to function with monthly afternoon meetings. Numbers are
less than in earlier years, but then times change and most younger women are of
necessity, working in paid employment. The Missionary emphasis is alive and well in
the 21st century and each year the MWF members raise money for the Special
Projects, often with a dinner and speakers and sometimes with morning teas and cake
stalls.
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Men's Fellowships:

A Men's Fellowship was formed in 1948, under the leadership of the late Mr. D. L.
Lewis. This became a strong and vigorous group, drawing into its fellowship most of
the men of the Church, and reaching out to give enthusiastic support to Mr. Gordon
Dey, a St. John's member, who was a Carpenter-Missionary in New Guinea. They also
encouraged other worthy objectives within the church and the community. Their
annual concert was a feature of their work each year, and many will remember the
humour and innovative entertainment that was offered by the men over the years. The
Men's fellowship went into recess in the 1960's, was revived again in the 1980's for a
little over a decade, but again went into recess. There is now a small but important
group of dedicated men who are called Men from the Ministry who foster
relationships between men for men with the Holy Spirit as their guide.

A Multi Cultural Church:

Over the years the St. John's congregation has been enriched by the presence of
students attending Waikato University. Many of these people have taken a full part in
the life and work of the church during their studies. Solomon Islanders, Zimbabweans,
Fijians, Taiwanese, are just some of the families who have been part of the church
during their time in New Zealand. There are many others. Besides students, there are a
number of new New Zealanders from Zimbabwe, Taiwan, South Africa, America,
England and many other countries all of whom contribute to the special nature of our
congregation.

In 1998 a further enrichment took place with the advent of the St. John's Tongan
Congregation. Although the Tongan Congregation meet to worship in their own
language most Sunday afternoons and every Wednesday evening, they share in the
first Sunday of the month Communion Services with the Palangi congregation where
they take an active part in the worship and fellowship. The music of the First Sunday
worship services has been greatly enhanced by the Tongan Choir and their youth
choir. As the years have passed, more interchange between our cultures has given a
deepening appreciation of what each person can bring to the life and work of the
church.

In 1994 the Fijian Fellowship which had been meeting in the Lady Goodfellow Chapel
at Waikato University, moved their base to St. John's and many of them became
members of the St. John's congregation. The Fijian Fellowship has grown significantly
and now Rev. Apakuki Ratucoka is their presbyter and pastor. His parish is truly a
Circuit which covers Hamilton, Rotorua and Tauranga. However, a number of our
Fijian members regularly attend morning worship at St. John's each week, adding
much to the special nature of this congregation.
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A Church with a Heart for Mission:

St. John's has supported overseas missions over the years. The late Mr. Gordon Dey
went from St. John's to mission in the Solomon Islands as a member of the Order of
St. Stephen for a year and then for a much longer period in the Highlands of Papua
New Guinea. He was supported by the people of his home church who supplied him
with the tools and machinery he needed for his work as Mission Builder. In all Gordon
spent 17 years on the Mission Field. In 1963 he came back to New Zealand to marry
Joyce Rosser and both returned to PNG for a further seven years. On their return to
New Zealand Joyce and Gordon became valued members of the St. John's
congregation until their retirement to Waihi Beach in the early 1990's.

Other young men also went for shorter periods of time as they felt the call to give
something of themselves to God's work in mission. A few, and by no means a
comprehensive list of these young people are: Darcy Baker, Des Jack, Neville Jack,
Jason Jack, Keith Masters, Neville Metcalfe and John Young. These gave from weeks
to months of service freely to assist the work of the church both in the Solomon
Islands and in Papua New Guinea.

More recently, members have joined work teams from Habitat for Humanity in
building projects in Fiji. And we remember too that the church was deeply involved in
the resettlement of refugees. Long may the church continue with a mission heart and
outreach.

The Opportunity Shops:

In 1968, the enterprising Rev. Trevor Shepherd proposed that an Opportunity Shop be
opened in Hamilton East. When the Leader's Meeting was undecided about whether to
proceed, the factor that swayed their decision to go ahead was the offer of Mr. Logan
Fow to manage the shop free for one month and then to accept only a small percentage
of the profit as remuneration for his services. The first shop was opened in Mr.
Currie's building in Grey Street opposite the church and on the site of the one-time
home of Mr. J. R. Fow, Logan's grandfather who was secretary of the Trust and Mayor
of Hamilton in the early years of the 20th century.

The original committee formed to operate the shop comprised Rev. Trevor Shepherd,
Chairman; Mesdames Edith Hampton, Secretary; and Ivy Storry; Messrs. Les Haynes;
Bert Fisher; Logan Fow; Tom Whimster; Jack Davys and Russell Horn. A full-time
manager, Mr. McDonald, was appointed in January 1969, and Mr. Lionel Cobb acted
as Treasurer until his untimely death in 1970 when Mr. Graham Marshall was
appointed in his place.

At their heyday, there were five Opportunity Shops throughout the city, the last one in
Clarkin Road at the Bankwood Shops closed in the early 1990's.
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In 1969 the Opportunity Shop's Minute Book defined the aims of the enterprise to be
"for the purpose of promoting social, welfare and charitable works in the
Community." The great vision of Rev. Trevor Shepherd and the Committee was
admirably fulfilled in an extraordinary way. Hundreds of thousands of dollars in
donations and sponsorships were distributed over the twenty-five years. Many people
gave unstintingly of their time and energy to the venture so that many other people
were able to benefit. The shops were in every sense a charitable arm of the church,
they were places where social contacts were made, lonely people found a sympathetic
ear and as has been noted, money was made available to schools, churches, youth
clubs, service clubs and other charities.

Memorial Garden:

Over the years we can look back with thankful hearts on the lives of so many people
within the St. John's fellowship who have given freely of their time and abilities to
make St. John's the place it is today.

When Sister Grace Clement (as pictured) a former Deaconess among our Waikato
Maori Peoples and a valued member of St. John's, died, a fitting memorial was
suggested and our Memorial Garden was created.

Although it was primarily dedicated to Sr. Grace, we at St. John's are mindful of the
many saints who laid the foundations that have made the church what it is today and
what we trust it will be in the future. And so we like to think of the garden as a fitting
memorial to all of those saints who have been part of the tapestry which is St. John's.

Recreational Pursuits:

Reference has been made to the tennis club, which functioned for a number of years
and later, when it was no longer a going concern, a Badminton Club was formed. This
was about 1930. It provided a happy meeting place for the senior young people of the
Church, and it continued well into the 1960's. Now into the 21st century, a Badminton
Club is in the reformation stage and the Hall is marked out for its new membership.

Indoor Bowlers have met regularly for a number of years under the leadership of
people like Neville Metcaife and Ivan Coulter. Traditionally, Wednesday afternoon
has been Indoor Bowils afternoon, but after a year in which the club went into recess it
will re-convene in June 2010 as an activity to be held on a Tuesday afternoon.

A Christian Endeavour was formed after the Val Trigge Mission of 1916, and revived
about 1937. A Wesley Guild was formed during the Ministry of Rev. E. T. Olds and
was a flourishing youth group in his time. It faltered after that ministry, but was
reformed in 1952. This later became, in 1960 a Youth Fellowship and was held in a
private home. Over the years much good has been done by these meetings amongst the
young people of the church although it is no longer in existence.
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A Wesley Football Club also functioned for several years, in the 1920's. For a period,
too, a Boys' Brigade was connected with the Church, but this ceased when leadership
became a problem during World War 1.

Appreciation of Hamilton Trust:

St. John's people have carried their own responsibility willingly by devoted and
consecrated effort. Many of our people have greatly helped the work by generous
financial gifts over the years, but this booklet would not be complete if an appreciative
reference was not included of the great assistance the Hamilton Trust has given. It has
made possible things that could not have been done, and our people are grateful. The
historical background, of course, to recognise that help is clear and unmistakable. Our
roots are deep in the Collingwood Street Church property. In 1924, when in financial
stress, the Trustees made representation to the Hamilton Trust and resolved, inter alia,
"We do respectfully request the Wesley Trust to recognise that we have a moral claim
to the funds of the Collingwood Street property, and would suggest for your
consideration the granting of an annual donation of £25 towards meeting the cost of
upkeep of the Hamilton East property ..." The submission was recognised, and St.
John's Trust had an annual grant made to its work, while additional generous help was
received from time to time. This generosity has continued to the present day and
substantial amounts, considerably more than £25 are given to Hamilton East Parish for
the general running expenses each year.

A Final Thank You:

As a parish we have been greatly blessed by the ministers / presbyters and their
spouses who have served Hamilton East over many years. Each has brought with him
or her gifts that have blessed the worshipping congregation and honoured God. We
thank all of those who have been called to minister in this place, for their vision, their
foresight, their dedication and their deep care of the people.

We are grateful also for the many people in our midst whose untiring work,
unheralded and unsung, has added to the fabric of life here. The cleaners, the lawn-
mowers, the flower arrangers, the organists and other musicians, the door greeters, the
morning tea providers, the recorders, the dreamers, the doers and many, many more
who have been and are still the church in this place.

Most of all we are grateful to God that people of vision answered his promptings and
built that little church one hundred years ago.

As the founder of Methodism said so many years ago, "The best is yet to be!" Thanks
be to God!

*kkkk
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I am aware that there will have been some omissions and errors, | apologise for any you have
noted and ask that you will forgive.

Rich blessings to you all. CED.

Harvest Thanksgiving 2005.
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St. John’s Close. Affordable Pensioner Housing.
Opened 1993 and dedicated by Rev. Keith Rowe, President of Conference.

Ministers and Presbyters who have served at St. John's
over the past 100 years:

At Trinity Church, Collingwood Street:

Rev. H.L. Blamires 1900-1902
Rev. J. T. Pinfold 1903-1905
Rev. T. Fee 1906-1907
Rev. H.L. Blamires (second term)  1908-1910
Rev. J. Wrigley 1911-1913

After Union in 1913 Rev. Wrigley moved to St. Pauls
At St. Paul's Church, London Street:

Rev. J. Wrigley 1913-1915 together with
Rev. J. Clover 1911-1914

Rev. T. J. Wallis 1916-1918

Rev. E. O. Blamires 1919-1923

At St. John's Church, Hamilton East:

Rev. C. M. Roberts 1915-1916

Rev. J. D. McArthur 1917-1918

Rev. E. T. Olds 1919-1922

Rev. F. E. Leadley 1923-1926
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Rev. A. O. Harris 1927-1931
Rev. J. Dennis 1932-1935
Rev. G.E. Brown 1936-1939
Rev. W. Gatman 1940-1946
Rev. J. H. Bailey 1947-1951
Rev. C. B. Oldfield 1952-1961
Rev. A. O. Jones 1961-1967
Rev. Trevor Shepherd 1967-1978
Rev. S. J. Barnes 1978-1986
Rev. Robyn D. Goudge 1986-1988
Rev. R. S. Andrews 1988-1993
Rev. A. W. Dickie Supernumary supply 1993-1995
Rev. S. J. Bowring 1995-1998
Rev. H. I. M. Taufu'i 1998-2001
Rev. W. J. Hambleton 2001-2006
Rev. J. Anne Griffiths 2006 —

Entered Full-Time Work from St. John's:

Rev. V. Roy Jamieson, MBE, ED.

Rev. Douglas H. Burt.

Rev. Idris J. Ruck.

Rev. Hughan M. Craig.

Rev. Kenneth Olsen.

Mr. Gordon Dey - Solomon Islands and Papua New Guinea Mission Field as a
Builder.

Members who have served the National Church:

Vice Presidents: Joyce Dey 1984
Alan Bettany 1991
David McGeorge 2003
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